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J. B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 2nd Flcor (Morth Wing), Sherpa Mall, Durbar Marg
Kathmandu, Nepal, F.O.Box: 23725

Tel: (01) 5347177, (01) 5344971
E-mail ; info@jbrdibins.com.np
web www jbrdibins. com.np

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LINITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Soaltes Hotel Limited (hereinafter referred to as "SHL"), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31% Ashad 2081 {15 July 2024} and the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, Staterment of Changes In Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and Notes to the Financial Staternents, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Staterments present fairdy, in all material raspeces, the financial position of
SHL as at 31% Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024), its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financlal Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Mepal Standerd on Auditing (M5As). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Fingncial Statements section of
our audit report. We are independent of SHL in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provision of the Companies Act 2063 and the rules thersunder, and we have fulfilled aur other
ethical responsibllities In accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bashs for our opinicn.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance In the audit of the
financial staternents. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereen, and we do not provide a separate cpinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

5.N. | Description of Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Revenue Recognition Our audit procedures included the
[ refer Mote 2.2.16 "Revenue” and Wote 3,15 of the follcwing:
Financial Staterment)
The Company is principally engaged as a hotel cwner [« Assessed  the appropriatensss  of  the
and proparty owner. It's revenue comprises hotel Company's revenue recognition accounting
revenue (including hotzl room revenue, food and palicies In line with MFRS 15 {Revenue from
beverage revenue, in-flight catering, and other hotel- Cortracts with Customers) and testing the
related revenue) and reatal income from investment

X accounting of revenue In books of accounts
PrOpares. therecf.

Revenus from sale of service Is recognized at the |, Assessing the Implementation as well as
time of defivery of services and It is probable that the testing of the operating effectiveness of the
future economic bensfits will flow to the company key cantrols associated to revenue including
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to B _

2 : effectiveness of IT application controls,
be incurred can be relsbly measured and no f e i ¢
performance ohligation is pending with respect to FoCas - flows, SO aion Tiegralion: o
reven e recognized. various applications, maneal Interventions

abe.

—

e
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Therefore, there is significant risk in accuracy of
recognition,  measurement, - presentation and
disclosures of revenues becawse of timing and
appropriateness  relative to  underlying  service
conditions. Hence, we have identified revenue
recognition as Key Audit Matter

Assessing the recognition of revenuss on
accrual basis by testing entries and accruals
affecting revenues based on the delivery
terms in sales and delivery documents or
system generated reports.

Parformed detailed analysis of revenue,
analytical testing with sales Information
filed with tax authorities, testing the timing
of its recognition and accuracy of amounts
recognized  and  verification of  the
supporting information of the revenue
trapsactions.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial staterments.

General Controls in IT Envircnment

Qur audit procedures have a focus on IT systems and
controls due to the pervasive nature and complexity
of the IT enwironment, the large wolume of
transactions and the reliance on automated and IT
dependent manual controls. Among others, these are

Our audit procedures  included  the
following:

Test of the operating effectiveness of the
company's access controfs owver the
information systems that are critlcal to
financial reporting. We inspected requests

key to ensuring operating effectivensss of T
dependent application — based contrels. Also, if the
IT controls over-financial data Is Improper, there is
risk of wrong reporting to the management,
regulator as well as other stakeholders.

of changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorization.

*  Evaluated whether IT guidelines have been
formulated and assess the contracts with
the IT vendaor.

¢  Understanding, where relevant, changes
were made to the [T controls and
applications during the audit period that
may have a significant impact en financial

reporting.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the presentation of the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in $HL's Annual Report, including "Report of Board of Directors/Chairman’s Statement™ but does
not include the financial statemeants and our auditor's report therean.

Qur apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is ta read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge abtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
wark we have parformed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent thersin, we are required to
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in actordance
with Mepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assassing SHL's ability to continue as 2 going
concern, disclosing, 2s applicable, matters ralated to going concem and using the going concarn basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseelng the SHL's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as @ whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranca is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with N5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are consldered material if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these FFnanEiaI Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judpement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alsos

i Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the Financizl Staterments whather due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain awdit evidence that Is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of mot detecting material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

li. Obtain an understanding of Intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
SHL's internal control.

ifi. Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the SHL's ability to continue 25 2 going concearn. If we conclude that material uncertainty
pyists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our eplnion. Our concluslons are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause SHL
to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achigves fair prasentation,

vi. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence reparding the financal information of the entities or business
activities within SHL to express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies In internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide thaose charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical
requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with therm all relationship and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the finandal stataments of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation pracludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a rmatter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

To the best of our knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
account of SHL necessary for the purpose of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit:

a. We have obtained zll the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the hest of
our knowledges and understanding, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

b, In our opinion, books of accounts, records, books and ledpers have been maintained accurately in accordance
with prevailing laws,

¢.  In our opinion, the financial statements comprising of Statements of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flows, prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Company Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the Books of Accounts
maintained by SHL.

d.  Tothe best of cur information and according to the explanations provided to us and as so far appearad from the
examination of the books of accounts, we have not come across cases where board of directors or any officlal
has committed any act contrary to the prevailing laws or committed any Irregularity or caused any loss or
damage to SHL or acted in a manner ba jeopardize the interest and security of SHL.

CA Jitendra B. Rajbhandary
Sentor Partner

COP: 25

Place: Kathmandu

Date: 13% Kartik 2081 (29 Octobar 2024)
UDIN: 24110 FCAC OO |4 L_-;,;jx
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of Company
Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal (SEBON)
and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the Company and
the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its incorporation more
than 57 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five-star quality hotel facilities
and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has invested in subsidiary Company
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned
subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pyt. Ltd.

The Company owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star Deluxe
category by the Government of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee Kathmandu” hotel at
Tahachal, Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is owned
and operated by the Company. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe,
Club to Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet, an Inflight
Catering Division under a Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte, Limited,
Singapore.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors on 29
October 2024 (13 Kartik 2081) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Basis of Preparation
2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Finaneial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants

of Nepal.
2.1.2. Basis of Measurement
These inancial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the following material
itermns:
— Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.
Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the obligation.
2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applving the company’s accounting policies.
The company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgements are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future,
actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Management reviews the uselul life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of
each reporting period. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets
and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative
efficiency and operating costs,

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
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At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the catrrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to d etermine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use, Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future
cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commaodity prices, market demand and
supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subseguent changes
to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact on the carryving value of assets.

Recognition of Deferred Tax

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or citcumstances arising beyvond the control
of the Company.

c

_—

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate 21.25% (Previous Year
21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred
tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of un-
used/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination of
employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate of
increase in annual compensation, remaining service period ete. Factors considered may change depend-
ing on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the
company's functional currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements reguires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas
where significant judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and
their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Standalone financial statements

This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated financial
statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.

2.2.2 Assoclates
Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are recognized only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions is ellminated against the carrying value of the
associate.
Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company's share of the identifiable assets,
liahilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carryving amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

i. Recognition

The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the company
becotmes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.



A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement

iii.

iv.

Financial Assets
The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the entity's
business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine whether
the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(‘FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss ['FVPLY.
— At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
ot determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They
are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses,
— At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on
its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-deriva-
tive financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOC]
are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available,
and changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair
value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is
reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.
Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii] any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liahbility when its contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

v. Amortized cost measurement

The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement

oc
Fag

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm's length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
gquoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.
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vii. Identification and measurement of impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and im-
pairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a resull of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably esti-
mated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- significant fina neial difficulty of the debtor

— breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.
In addition, for an investment in an unguoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its
net worth is ohjective evidence of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCL Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement [OCI in case of available for sale
investment).
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing
loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through QCI.
2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment logs is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they

reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income,

2.2.5 Foreign Currency
Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency” is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
tuling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component,/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having usefal life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.



2.2.7

2.2.8

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.
Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land iz not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives,

[tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 vears

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 vears

Vehicle 10 - 20 vears
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leaszehold Development 3 years

Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives,

Investment Property

The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assels are classified as investment property.

[tems of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items, The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions, Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in
its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrving amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained carnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The leaze rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight
line method, in line with NFRES 16: Leases,

Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.
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Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items
of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life,
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

2.2.9 Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding,.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss,
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive Income
that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to
Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories
Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subseguently
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses,

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liguid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not

meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company's equity shares are classified
as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits
Employvee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of the
company comprize of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as
per the Emplovee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and
the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined provident fund benefit to Social Security Fund [(SSF) and the company
does not have any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to
Provident fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate,
Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to emplovees,



The Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with Labor Law
of Nepal and the Company has deposited Employee Gratuity in S5F. The amount presented in financial
statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the

present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax
Deferred Tax
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxahble profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated
reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management assumption and
best judgement,

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate
as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058 Sec. 11(2Chha). Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the

company for current fiscal year is 21.25% (previous year rate was 21.25%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue
iz measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Luxury Tax where applicable.
Revenue from Sale of Services
Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Luxury Tax. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is stated net of Civil
Aviation Fee.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income
Other income is recognized on acerual basis when there is reasonable basis to ascertain the amount and
there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fee, which are insignificant to
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the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there is reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Ltd, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of The Soaltee Gate Gourmet' is based on a fixed percentage
of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Emplovee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 B3.

2.2.18 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain

lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Sopaltee Gate
Gourmet. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with NFRS 16; Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures
to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight
line method, in line with NFRS 16: Leases,

2.2.19 Provisions
The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Pravisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likkely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists,

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and Habilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cvele as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies a liability as current when:



Yot

2.2.21

2.2.22

2.2.23

it wfdasT Y050 /3059

» [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
+ It iz held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Segment Reporting

The Company's segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will
be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Operating Cycle
The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
| Cost
| Balance at 01.04.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition -
| Disposal/Transfer
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,937,654 14,937,654
| Addition - -
: Disposal -
Balance at 31.03.2081 14,937,654 14,937,654
| Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
:- Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
| Disposal -
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,510,800 14,510,800
Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
Disposal -
| Balance at 31.03.2081 14,888,042 14,888,042
| Net Book Value
| At 01.04.2079 804,096 804,096
| At 31.03.2080 426,854 426,854
At 31.03.2081 49,612 49,612
Note 3.3: Investment Property Amount in Rs.
Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
| Balance at 01.04.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition -
| Disposal/Transfer - - -
| Balance at 31.03.2080 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
| Addition 2 4,280,130 4,280,130
: Disposal
Balance at 31.03.2081 4,707,287 170,426,942 175,134,230
: Amortization
| Balance at 01.04.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Charge for the vear 1,979,123 1,979,123
: Disposal - = 3
Balance at 31.03.2080 - 83,656,605 83,656,605
| Charge for the year - 2,093,800 2,093,800
Dizposal - -
| Balance at 31.03.2081 - 85,750,405 85,750,405
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618
At 31.03.2080 4,707,287 82,490,207 87,197,495
At 31.03.2081 4,707,287 84,676,537 89,383,825
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/|Liabilities)

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company 21.25%
(Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to
deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered,

Amount in Rs.

Credit/(Charge) to | Credit/{Charge) to
Particulars 01.04.2080 SOPL ocI 31.03.2081
Fixed Assets (62,270,628) (10,900,967) - {73,171,595)
Gratuity Provision 15,009,798 [921,269) - 14,088 529
Provision for Leave 11,963,694 918,317 - 12,882,011
Trade and Other Receivahble 10,968,678 1,062,500 - 12,031,178
Total (24,328,458 [9,841,419) - (34,169,877
Credit/[Charge] to | Credit/(Charge) to
Particulars 01.04.2079 SOPL oclI 31.03.2080
Fixed Assets (53,303,422) 18,967,208 - (B2,270,628)
Gratuity Provision 16,203,871 (1,194,073) - 15,000 798
Provision for Leave 10,406 635 1,557,059 . 11,963 694
Trade and Other Receivable 0.906,178 1,062,500 - 10,968 678
Total (16,786,738) (7,541,720) 3 (24,328,458)
Note 3.5: Investments i e g
Particulars | 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080

Non-Current

At Amortized Cost

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

At Fair Value Through OCI 281,276,188 275,487,563
Total 281,276,188 275,487,563
Current

At Amortized Cost - E
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss -

At Fair Value Through OCI

Total - -
Investment comprises the following:

At Amortized Cost [A) 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Term Deposit

Total Investment at Amortized Cost

At Fair Value Through OCI (B)

Investment in Subsidiaries

Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each)

250,000,000

250,000,000

Advance for Investiment in Soaltee Hospitality Lid. 12,640,000 12,640 000
Sub-Total 262,640,000 262,640,000
Investment in Other Entities

Eﬁé?i]g :;th]ematmna] Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. (100,000 shares of Rs. 18,636,188 12,847,563
Sub-Total 18,636,188 12,847,563
Total Investment through OCI 281,276,188 275,487,563
Proportion of w:ﬂngilgits

Soaltee Hospitality Lid, 100% 100%%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Lid. 2.97% 2,97 %




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
Ag at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Non-Current
iUther Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 12,289 454 9,299,783
| Deposits 6,073,912 7,065,592
| Loans and Advances to Employees 4,536,124 6,982,735
Deferred Employvee Benefit Expenses - 41,304
| Total 29,950,909 30,440,833
| Less: Allowance for Impairment (V,051,419) (7,051,419)
| Total 22,899,490 23,389,414
Current
Trade Receivable
| Trade Receivable 278,565,118 266,725,614
Less: Allowance for Impairment (49,565,887 (44,565,887
Trade Receivable-Net 228,999,231 222,159,727
Other Receivable
| Loans and Advances to Employees 11,679,674 13,814,856
| Loans and Advances to Other 33,742,472 28,209,222
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 27,793,193 54 267,965
| VAT Recoverable 1,342,801 3,089,678
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 4.036,2581
| Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 307,080 285,776
Total Other Receivable 78,901,501 103,683,778
Total 307,900,732 325,843,505

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.

Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of 90
days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in Current

Receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2,

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Stores and Spares 22,620,542 21,790,412
| Provision, Beverage and Others 43,581,747 37,221,699
| Uniform and Linen 39,701,656 42,147,234
| Crockery, Cutlery ete. 25,333,070 21,044,174
| Total 131,237,015 122,203,519
Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Cash in Hand 3,287,161 3,880 934
| Cheques in Hand 700,000
| Balances with Banlk 98,628,210 64,953,756
| Total 101,915,371 69,543,690
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs,

Particulars

31.03.2081 |

31.03.2080

Authorized Share Capital

| 150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

| 100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each
ISuhmri'h-ed and Fully Paid up

1,000,000,000 |

1,000,000,000

|92 895 370 Shares of Rs.10/- each 028 053 700 884 715,060
| Total 928,953,700 884,715,060
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Balance at the beginning of the year 858,471,506 84,257,973
Add: Bonus [ssue 4 423 864 4,213,533
Balance at the end of year 92,895,370 88,471,506
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Sharcholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
[ Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Bhare Premium 16,000,000 16,000 000
| Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation REeserve 35,198,427 35,198 427
{ Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 8,636,188 2,847,563
| Retained Earnings 1,370,738,888 1,160,362,926
| Total 1,437,862,264 1,221,697,677
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Non-Current
| Secured- Hire Purchase 6,636,303 7,931,571
| Total 6,636,303 7,931,571
| Current
Current Portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,360,289 1,308 207
Total 1,360,289 1,308,207
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080

Non-Current

| Gratuity

66,208 960

70,634,343

{ Lesa: Flan Assets (1,505,714} (1,259,866)
| Net Gratuity Liability 64,793,246 69,374,477
| Accumnulated Leave 60,621,227 26,299,735
| Total 125,414,473 125,674,212
Current
| Salary and Wages Payable 12,861,071 13,028 397
Bonus Payable T4, 734 688 68,712,943
| Total 87,595,759 81,741,340




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable|

Amount in Rs,

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Advance Income Tax 131,636,672 109,724,626
| Income Tax Liability {137,462,999) (124,608,113)
| Total (5,826,327) (14,883 ,487)
Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars 31.03.2081 1 31.03.2080

Non-Curr

| Retention and Security Deposit 29, 704,246 15,159.071
| Advances Received 45,034 895 48,947,939
| Unclaimed Dividend 17,936,251 12,539,009
| Total 92,675,392 77,646,019
| Current

| Sundry Creditors

261,023,853

236,545,187

| Other Payable

| Advances Received 34,999 574 34,999 574
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,230,305 1,145,430
| Service Charge 12,025,508 12,102 566
f Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
| Corporate Social Responsibility 10,536,663 8,431,238
| Other Liabilities 854,740,881 AE,252, 678
| Total 430,890,813 387,843,702
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation
Particulars 20B0-B1 2079-80

| Room 591,426,885 551,094,425
| Food 1,670,573,962 1,496,892,775
| Beverage 124,152,256 104,935,519
| Cigar and Cigarettes 2,052 4760 1,497,714
| Laundry Income 2,222,726 1,779,057
Business Centre 21,106 17,131
| Total 2,390,449 411 2,156,216,621
Note 3.16: Other Income

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
I Premises Rental Charge 51,910,324 36,463,978
| Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 901,531 1,108,581
| Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 203,776 147,395
| Miscellaneous Receipts 20,953,635 10,644,900
Income from Service Charge - 21,403,302
Dividend [heome 2,700,000 19,271,347
| Profit on Sale of Assets 179,281 4,506,502
| Exchange Gain 708,585 2,548,345
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity - 2,315,290
| Unclaimed Balance Written Back 111,924 -
| Total 107,969,056 08,409,640

Yc
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Food 372,362,310 350,648,786
5 Beverage 32,081,547 28,830,695
| Cigarettes 709,619 603,925
| Total 405,153,476 380,083,406
Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Salary and Wages 281,051,900 250,363,992
| Allowances 91,285,848 69,270,703
| Festival Allowance 14,721,002 13,042,251
| Overtime 9,030,487 8,510,124
| Employees Meal 45,212 425 42 212,553
| Soaltee Stafl Welfare 2,398,228 2,468,229
Gratuity 14,978 588 13,593,805
| Leave 8,872,154 11,095,599
| Provident Fund 17,982,025 16,315,871
Clinic Expenses 3,116,383 2,806,557
| Incentive Exit Scheme 3,975,504
| Bonus 74,734,688 68,712,943
| Total 563,383,728 502,368,131
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Linen 16,021,984 11,354,900
| Laundry Supplies 49,467,434 37,871,510
| Crockery & Cutlery 4,513,645 3,913,305
| Silverware 1,627,007 529,198
| Cleaning Supplies 17,803,578 14,245,204
E' F & B Paper Supplies 21,476,771 17,328,664
| Guest Supplies 35,240,718 32,244 290
| Water & Water Treatment 11,331,873 10,413,839
| Garden Maintenance Bd4d4 BE6 1,602 064
| Pest Control 2,508,000 2,496,000
| Waste Removal 1,491,503 1,243,300
| Power and Fuel 107,851,520 115,138,899
| Repair and Maintenance 33,281,448 36,928 650
| Total 303,460,367 285,399,823




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Rental Charges 15,997,048 10,367,951
Travelling 22,718,769 24,776,318
Transport and Conveyance 29,927,122 34,364,718
Audit Fee 605,000 605,000
Legal and Professional Fees 9,920,027 9,303,004
Directors’ Meeting Fees 1,794,132 1,494 123
Licence & Taxes 87,442 500 33,.879.627
Bank Charges 10,827,365 8,794 279
Annual General Meeting Expenses 1,185,640 a970,145
Commissions 13,250,510 16,110,637
Insurance 10,959 771 10,071,617
Communication Expenses 4. 848 811 2,452,574
Printing and Stationery 9,190,712 7,251,309
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 19,250,117 16,795,825
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 7,818,957 T, 717,702
Training and Conference 1,858 882 1,683,173
Books and Newspaper 200,418 186,937
Membership & Subscription 1,996 947 2,281,856
Security Services 15,123,943 15,204 998
Uniform Expenses 7,949 331 7,340,730
Entertainment 5,714,191 4,536,967
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,061
Software Service Charges 2,251,196 6,501,297
Investment Written Off - 3,443,328
Banguet Expenses 7,434 667 9. 421 467
Kitchenette Expenses 2,980,553 7,870,198
Corporate Social Responsibility 6,000,425 5,549,796
Mizcellaneous 26,720,846 20,065,898

Total

337,967,880

277,343,565

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss atiributable to equity shareholders,
Diluted earnings per share iz calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number of
ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or share
gplit, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for

all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall has been done as stated above.

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Basic Earnings per Share

| Profit/ (Loss) for the year

600,042 463

254,979,595

| Number of shares 92,895,370 92,895,370
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 6.46 5.97
Diluted Earnings per Share

| Profit [or the vear 600,042 463 554,970,505

Weighted average number of shares 092 895,370 92,895,370

| Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 6.46 5.97

El 0
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The [air values are determined according to the following
hierarchy:
The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair
value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value of category
of financial assets /liahilities.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date,
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data (accounting
value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets or
linhilities.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2081 | Carrying Amount | Levell | Level2 | Level 3
Financial Assets

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

E'I'rade and Other Receivable 330,493,142 330,493,142
| Investment

{Cash and Cash Equivalent 101,915,371 101,915 371
Total At Amortized Cost 432,408,513 432,408,513
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Investment 281,276,188 281,276,184
Total Financial Assets 713,684,701 - - 713,684,701
Financial Liabilities

Finan Liabilit t Amort t
| Trade and Other Payahble 523,566,205 I 523,566,205
| Loans and Borrowings 7,906 592 7,996,592
|Tutal: Financial Liabilities 531,562,797 - - 531,562,797

As at 31.03.2080 | Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

| Trade and Other Receivable 348,925,839 348,925,839
| Investment - -
?Cush and Cash Equivalent A9, 543,690 69,543,690
Total At Amortized Cost 418,469,529 418,469,520
Finan t Fair Value th ther ym h Income [FVOCI
Investment | 275,487,563| | ] 275,487,563
Total Financial Assets | 693,957,092 | -| -1 693,957,092
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
| Trade and Other Payvable 465,489,721 | 465,489,721
Loans and Borrowings 9,239,778 9,239,778
| Total Financial Liabilities 474,729,499 . . 474,729,499
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital

The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member's share of the paid
up equity share capital.

4.2 Dividend

Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors have proposed 10% bonus shares and 26.84210526% cash dividend for the vear
2080-81 (previous vear 5% bonus shares and 26.57894737% cash dividend). Accordingly, the total
distribution by the Company from the profits arising from 2080-81 is as follows:

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend
Proposed for 2080-81 92,895,370 249,350,730
Number of shares 9,289 537

Faid for 2079-80 [Amount) 44,238,640 235,147,950
Mo. of shares 4,423,864

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings
a. Share premium
The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company
in excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in
Company Act 2063,
b. Other Reserves

The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this
reserve since then,

¢. Retained Earning
Met profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders,

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

¢. Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the first
time adoptionn of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits
a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company was
required to pay gratuity to stafl considering the number of years in service and the recent salary
of the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration
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as gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074, The Company has enrolled itself and
its emplovees in Social Security Fund (S5F) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making
contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

[ Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

| Opening Liability 70,634, 343 76,253,510

{ Payment Made i4,335,383) (3,303,876)

| Expenses Booked 14,978 588 13,593,805

| Reversal of Excess Provision - (2,315,291)
Deposited in 55F [14,978,5588) (13,593,805)

| Closing Liability 66,298,960 70,634,343

b. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liahility. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability
is as follows:

| Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Opening Liability 56,299 735 48,972,399
Service Cost 8,046,925 8,229 115
Interest Cost 4,827,804 4,022,204
Actuarial Gain/|Loss) (3,715,503) (1,152,677)
Benefit Paid (4,837,824) {3,771,396)
Closing Liability (A) 60,621,227 56,299,735
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B| 60,021,227 56,299,735
Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as follows:

| Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Digcount Eate 9.00%, #.50%

Hate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 16 14
Average duration of liabilities 11 10

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis
The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for caleulating
the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Effect on:
- Service Cost (829, 497) 912,634
- Interest Cost 536,430 473,209
- Leave Liability (11,129 540) (10,8583,443)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating
the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-B0
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,009,124 1,109,033
- Interest Cost (536,430) (473,209)
- Leave Liability 13,347,626 13,101,212
4.5 Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future

minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2080-81 2079-80
| Up 1o one year 11,249,756 13,012,007
{One to five VEATS 5,648,627 11,185,354
| Total 16,898,383 24,197,451



The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some patrt of its assets on lease.
Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

[ Period 2080-81 2079-80

'_Up to one yvear 62,221,492 a7.607,133
One to five vears 303,558,343 291,633,300
Above five vears 150,365,219 172,386,540

| Total 516,145,054 501,626,973

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility
During the year, the Company has provided Rs. 6,00 million (previous vear Rs, 5.55 million) (1% of net
profit after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises
Act 2076.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

i. DMarket Risk
In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sectlor and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the company through
vears of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past,

ii. Credit Risk
The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit facility
from its creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company debtors' ability
to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there exist the eredit risks
to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years has been managing such
risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position
by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The
Company monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting,

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk
The Company has been in operation since more than 37 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (S0OPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for the
activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also follow specific operating
guidelines issued by its franchise. Company believes that the controls implemented by the company
have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out Control
Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the company scored high level marks placing it as one

among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company's revenue will be impacted coming from any fuctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so
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be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk of
impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate fluctuation has
generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as well. The Company
has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for substantial period so
as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.
4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the company comprise of key management personnel, organization having significant

influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a. Subsidiary Company
The Company has one subsidiary company. The Company has presence on the Board of this company
in proportion of its shareholding. Company provides office space to the subsidiary on operating
lease. Other than this, there is no any transaction with subsidiary company.

Holding Rental Charge Outstanding balance
Name of Subsidi
= Y This Year Last Year This Year I Last Year
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100 66,667 66,667 - =

b. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:
i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL]
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt, Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Socaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667
[previous year Ks. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,102,500 to SEPL as
aperating lease rent, There is no outstanding balance at the year end.
¢. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corpaoration is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one representative
in the Board of SHL.
SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Re i illi Receivable (in millio

venue [in million) ceivable | n)
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year

Flight Catering Services 338.86 274.49 44.19 50.44

ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.
d. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition of
Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position | Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman | Soaltes Enterprises Pwt. Lid.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mra. Jaya Rajyva Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Lid.
Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari Director MNepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakaszh Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi Director Independent Director

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 25,000 [net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
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meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 1.79 million (previous year Rs. 1.49 million).
e. Key Management Personnel

The company's key management personnel are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 47.64 million (previous year
E=s. 31.84 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the performance
incentive paid based on the profit of the Company.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend

Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 17.94 million (previous year Es. 13.54 million).
4.10 Trade and Other Receivable
4.10.1 Ciwil Aviation Fee Recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on In-flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to
Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-Current Trade and other receivables,
4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings.
In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the cutstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed
by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and
business revival is not yet known,

4.11 Lien on Company's Assets
The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan and
overdraft against a vehicle, movable and immovable properties amounting to Es. 7.99 million (previous
year Rz, 9.24 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result
of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation: or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year,

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Bs. 56.34 million (previous vear Rs,
26.04 million).

4.14 Litigations or Legal Cases
i. Income Tax Matters
Appeal Revenue Tribunal
The Inland Revenue Department has filed an appeal to review the verdict of the Revenue Tribunal in
the Honorable Supreme Court for the Fiscal Year 2068-69 which had ruled in favor of the Company.
The Honorable Supreme Court issued its final verdict in favor of the Company during this fiscal year.,
The Supreme Court upheld the Revenue Tribunal's verdict and dismissed the appeal by the Inland
Revenue Department. The full text of the verdict of the Supreme Court is yet to be received after

publication by the Supreme Court at a later date.

The Company has filed an appeal with Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on
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Self-Assessment Income Tax Return for the Fiscal Year 2067-68, 2009-70, 2070-71, 2071-72, 2072-
73, 2073-T4, 2074-75 & 2075-76. The appeals arise due to an additional income tax demand/claim
as assessed by the Large Taxpavers Office during their administrative review. The Company's
management believes that it should not incur a significant financial obligation to the Company due
to these tax claims. If any tax claim does arise, such charges would be directly charged to Company's
accumulated profit, in accordance with past practice.

The Company has filed a writ petition with High Court against additional demand of Tax deducted
at source (Income Tax) by Large Tax Office relating to FY 2073/74. The Matter is sub-judiced in the
High Court.

ii. Arbitration Suit

The Company has filed a Writ Petition with the Honorable High Court Patan on the issue of Outstanding
Receivable recovery pending settlement by the then Hotel Manager, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd (Manager)
seeking the court's assistance for appointment of an arbitrator on behalf of Holiday Inns (China) Ltd.,
as they did not appoint their arbitrator. The High Court has appointed an arbitrator on behalf of
Holiday Inns (China) Ltd. Howewver, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd has challenged the appointment in the
Supreme Court of Nepal stating that they have already appointed their arbitrator. The matter is sub-
judiced in the Supreme Court.

iii. Casino Royalty of the Closed down period

The Company has filed writ petition with the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal against the demand
of Casino Royalty by Government of Nepal for the period in which the casino was not in operation
from Shrawan 2068 to Kartik 2069 due to the cancellation of Nepal Recreation Centre's Casino
Operation permission. The Supreme Court has dismissed the writ and the Company has settled said
Casino Rovalty as per the full text of the verdict from the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal during
this fizscal year.

iv. Civil Aviation Authority for TIA Lounge contract continuation

The Company has filed writ petitions with the District Court of Nepal against the Civil Aviation
Authority of Nepal & TIA for the continuation of the Leaze Agreement as per the Contract renewal
provision for the further period of three years, The District Court has awarded stay order until final
verdict of the Court during this fiscal vear.

v. Legal cases

The company has filed a few other cases to recover dues from some debtors and other parties in the

course of its regular business,
4.15 Capital Commitment

Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 14585 million

(Previous year Rs. 175.33 million).
4.16 Letter of Credit

There is Rs. 6.68 million [previous year Hs, Nil) outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
4.17 Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labor laws. Owing to changes in Labor law,
this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. The Company has not paid during the
year out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.

4,18 Operating Segment

Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into three operating
segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered,



i. Room Segment: The Room Segment of a hotel includes reservations, front desk, housckeeping and
Fuest services.

il. Food & Beverage Segment: The function of Food & Beverage Segment and Flight Services Division
is to provide food and beverages services to its customers,

iii. Other Segment: Other Segment includes the Corporate Division, Sales & Marketing Department,
Human Resource Department and other services centres except Room and Food & Beverage Segment

of the Hotel.

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:

{Amount in millions)

Bk Food & Other
Operating Segment Segment Beverage Segment Total
Segment
- Revenue 591.43 1,794.72 112.27 2,498.42
| Total Revenue 591.43 1,794.72 112.27 2,498.42
Expenses
{ Consumption Cost 133.27 405.15 - 538.42
:'E-mployee Benefit Expenzes 97.44 292.60 173.34 563.38
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 33.56 279.40 195.20 208,16
| Depreciation and Amortization 137.50
| Finance Cost 3.60
ITuta.l Expenses 264.27 977.15 368.54 1,751.07
Segment Result 327.16 817.57 (256.27) T47.35
{Income Tax 147.30
| Profit/(Loss) for the Period 600.04
|Segment Assets® 3,151.39
|Segment Liabilities** 3,151.39

* Segment wise assets has not been prepared due o absence internal reporting system of segment assets,

w4 Begment wise liabilities has not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of sepment liabality.

4.19 Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company,
The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based on management’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs. We consider
the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient
capital management., The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a
focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
reguired, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company's will take appropriate steps
in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to sharcholders, The Company’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by contining to distribute dividends in future periods.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years

reported in this financial statement.
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4.20 Events after reporting date
Ewvents after the reporting date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
balance sheet date and the date when the financial statement are authorized for issue. There are no
material events that have ocourred subsequent to 15 July 2024 till the date of signing of this financial

statements.

4.21 Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded ofl to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist,
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPEMNDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Consolldated Financial Statements of Soaltes Hotel Umited [hereinafrer refarred to as “SHLY)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”), which comprise of the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position as at 317 Ashad 2081 [15® July 7024) and the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolideted Statement of Changes In Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

In aur cpinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemments prosent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 317 Ashad 2081 [15% July 2024), its consolidated financial performance and Its
consofidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reperting Standards [NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing (N53As). Qur responsibilities under those
starrclards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Staterments
section of our audit report. We are [ndependent of the Group in accordance with the |CAN"s Handbook of Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
ICAN"s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the awedit evidence we have
chained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
¢onsolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the rcontext of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on
these matters. We have determingd the matters described below 1o ba the key awdit matters 1o be communicated in

[ fefer Mote 2.2.16 “Reverve” and Mote 316 of the
consolidated financial statemant]

The Company |s princlpally engaged as a hote! owner and
property owner, It's revenue comprises hotel revenue
[including hotel reom revenue, food and beverags revenus,
in-tlight catering, and ather hotekrelated revenue] and
rental incoma from invastment proparties.

Revenue from sale of service Is recopnized at the time of
delivery of services and B i3 probable that the future
economic bensfits wil flow ta the company and that
revenue and associated costs incurred or to b incurmed can
be reliably measured and no performance obligation Is
pending with respect to revenue recognized.

Therefare, these is significand risk in accuracy of recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenuags
because of timing and datEnass., relative  to

-

our repart,
5N, | Description of Hey Audit Mattars How the matter was addressed In owr audi
L Revenue Recognition "~ Our audit procedures included the foliowing:

fasegzed the appropriateness af the Company's
TEvENUE redopnition ascounting policies in ne
with NFAS 15 [Revenue from Contracts with
Customers] and testing the accounting of revenue
i books of accounts theraod.

hssassing the implementation as well as basting of
the operating effectiveness of the key contrals
associated to revenue including pffectiveness of
T application controls, ProcEss flonws,
automationfintegration of varicus applications,
manual interventions etc,

Assessing the recognition of rgvgnues on accrual
basis by testing entrins and accruals affecting
revanues based on the defivary terms in sales and




yodf aifti® wfadaT os0 /3059

undertying service conditions. Hence, we have identilied
revenue recognition as Key Audit Matber

delivery documents or systern generated reports.

Performed detailed analysis of revenue, analytical
testing with sales information filed with tax
authorities, testing the timing of its recognition
and accuracy of amounts recognized and
veriflcation of the supporting information of the
revenus transactions.

Evaluated the adegquacy of disclosures in the
financial statements,

Genaral Controls in IT Environmeant

Our audle procedures have a focus on IT systems and
controls due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the
iT environment, the large volume of transactions and the
refiance on automated and IT dependant manual controls.

Our awsdit procedures included the following:
Test of the operating effectivenses of the
company's access contrals over the information
sysberns that are critical to Bnancial reporting.
We Inspected reguasts of changes to systems

Among otfhers, these are key 1o ensuring operating
effactivencss af IT degendant application — based controks.
Alsa, if the IT controls over-financial data is Improper, there
is risk of wrong reporting to the management, regulator as
well as other stakeholders.

for appropriate approval and autharization.

L] Evaluated whether IT guidelines have been
formulated and assess the contracts with the IT
vendor.

- Understanding, where relevant, changes wera
made 1o the 1T cantrols and applications during
thir audit period that may have a significant
impact on financial reporting.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial staterment and other financial information of "Soaltee Hospitality Limited" { 100%
Subsidiary of SHL), whose financial statement reflect totzl assets of Rs.268.55 million and net assets of fs.267.30
millien as at July 15,2024 and net profit of Rs.2.40 million and net cash cutflows amounting to Rs.C.77 million for the
year then anded. These financial staterments and other finandal infarmation have been audited by other auditors wha
have expressed an unmodified oplnion on those statements. Those reports have been furnished to us by the
management, and our opinion on the consclidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the accounts and
disclosures incleded In respect of these subsidiary, are basad solely an the report of the other auditor.

Cur apinlon on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other legal and regulatory requirements
below in not moedified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done,

information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management of the Group are responsible for the presentation of the other informaticn. The other information
comprises the information included In SHL's Annual Report, including "Report of Board of Direckors/Chairman’s
Statement” but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidatad financlal statemants doss not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our awdit of the consolidated financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of aur audit or otharwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude fhat there Ts 2 material misstatement therein, we

e
20 .
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are required to communicate the matter with those charged with governance. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Consclidated Financial Statemeants in
accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standard {NFRS), and for such internal contrel as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, managemeant is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as 2 going concern, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters relsted to going concern and using the going concern
basls of accounting unless management elther Intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 5tatements

Our objectivas are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financlal Statements as a whole
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issua an auditor's report that includes our
opinipn. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, bwt it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with hSAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud
or error and are consldered material if, Individually or In the aggraegate, they could reasocnably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of usars taken on the basis of these Consolidatad Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with MN3As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skapticiem throughout the audit. We alzo:

i.  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements whether due to
fravd or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting material misstatement
resuliting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misre presantations, or the ovarride of the internal contral,

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the clircumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

iil. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related dizclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whethar a material uncertainty exists related to svents or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuras in the Consofidated
Financial Statements ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to ceass to continue as a going concam.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statemants, including the
distlosuras, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements reprezent the underlying transactions and

events in @ manner that achieves fair pregL\tuin.
; / x.,‘n.l'!.Lz'I.l'_}.-d.
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vi. Obtzin sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion an the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible
for the direction, suparvision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinian.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deflclencies in Internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical
requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we detarmine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare arcumstances, we datermine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasanably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

To the best of cur knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
account of the Group and SHL necessary for the purpose of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit; g

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the best of
our knowledge and understanding, were necessary for the purpose of the sudit.

b.  In our opinion, books of accounts, records, books and ledgers have been maintained accurately in accordance
with prevailing laws. %

. In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial staterments comprising of Staiements of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cash flows, prepared in accordance with the requirements of Company Act, 2063 and are In
agreement with the Beoks of Accounts maintained by the Group.

d. To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and as so far appeared from the
examination of the books of accounts, we have not come across cases where board of directors or any official
has committed any act contrary to the prewvalling laws or committed any irregularity or caused any loss or
damaga to the Group or acted in @ manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the Group.

/.r’f':‘_'{‘ﬁ“ dr:f;;' i

i .
7
ez 2
Poilo Eathmandd
e - L tenal #*
CA Jitendra B. Rajbhandary 4 o §
Senior Partner NG S

3,
cop: 35 ~Lreq potSF
Place: Kathmandu

Date: 13t Kartik 2081 (29 October 2024)
UDIN: 24140 Z CAOO 4 Didy




el Blew fafee

UFEA (Consolidated) fafaa feafaer fammo
¥ #TTE 3059 (44 F[ETE 0%¥) FETH

L

W =1 W
AT AT T T 39 399387 990 3,%0%,%989c%
A TP B3 L] TR ENE
e e B 3.3 =%,353,5% 59958 WY
AT 3.4 50,1 455 9% 5o YT
FATAE TG H7 T R T9,5%% €40 CEELAAA R
T9 T = w=i 2,4GE, Y83, 95y 7,969,%%%,3%
e W
Fa=r At FRL §39, %39 074 955,903 499,
AT AT R A R o s Y 295,339 3%
At e 33,%%5,99¢ 39,390, 50
T 7 T 975 is 0% 306957 Y1 RE SR
e e B s YE%,300,4¥Y Y¥9,478, 405
A T 3,144,583,630 2,630,498,59
deir q9T T

o 9T FAET T qATHT
R il %5 943,900 o5 Y $iY 0%0
i FATHT 74T T ER R BT §,ERE 0T 4T
fraerssr &a dufr 9,397,458 943 2,105,844, 499
= JE =y 19 - -
ELRG 7,399,458, 949 2,905, 944, 499
=
i = i
SO AT A ERE %535 303 135,39,44
FHAT FfaurewE 3193 EER AR AL CEPRAC L
T W 2 3% E R LR T IvE Wie
IR B e 394 SRR IRR R A
T it = s 45, B5E, 0%y 334,450,350
T =
O AGT HWTTAT 393 9 350 35%, 4 305 908
FHET HFITEE ERE 54U Y 4,89, 30
ATTET T 19% ¥,%09,394 ¢, 590,498
£l ) o e | 394 W3 NEE e ER LR
wo e i 434, 401,033 ¥TE, 160,530
& ey WT¥, %08, 06T w31, 1857, 240
A AT TET A 3,744, GE3, 030 3,530,495, 5

feoeit q 3 .3 a9 a9 Taaeoresr s & g

Hredr dew . = TR araT = fafasr gee gfad=asr smarear

e Ll = . e 9. TR
e wrET waprer frrw it
AT FEAT Ah HITUT T R
ECI e
Tia W &
fafer - 43 T 3069 L IE L
(3%, FHEET FOYH) frrma g featamen

T WIEATEY, AT HETAEEy



a2
alorta
e ]

Soalfee Hotel Limited
* * * * *

et Brew fafnee

uftfE (Consolidated) ATaT a1 A farw qar = e am
¥ WE J05q (94 F[ATE 07¥) A AT WU I

yodff afds ufFdeT Roz0 /3059

HTATATE ATETHT 19% %390, ¥¥%, ¥ A LU DR
o ATl 399 999,588, T3 00 W5 YYs
s B 2,409,935, 54¥ 2,45, 1909,00¢
= 79T T TETEE @0 195 TR PERT 350,053,704
FHAT AT TIEE 9% Y83 353,89 Y07 s 43
AT A 2,30 203,¥50 550 154,399,543
ET AT i A 39/3.%-3.3 ELEERER 93,599,790
a7 3,99 335,053, %5% B 378 00
= 't 9,88 YEE, BN 1,445, 549,43
THTAAAE HATHT Yy, 163,034 £%, 00, U¥E
faer T 3%80% 550 5850 53s
T AT HATHT §40, 480, %43 £G%,745,5%0
AT 1,990,469 133,859, 974
HTH T LE L EPRELR LY
T o " AT ER 2,269,499 CERER-E
i Wy AT £03,540, 898 YYE, ¥5E, 4%
q FREE A
A7 TAMF Fair Value AT A0H Tea0q ¥ s R 9,90% 539
A Fefir=i sy BOL, ¥3%,0%Y ¥4T, 799, W8
T HATETH T
[EREEZal 807, ¥U0,¥Y5 AR, ¥EE AN |
o= Feiieed arE fee
FT=E et 9,907 579
Ty A T i <
HATAT (Basic) T 597 @TR=ET & o £.0% .55
e [Diluted) TH 97 STEET = o 5.0, ¥,
froely q 3 .39 Tw T Famor = s &)
=T g2 . #1 awaEe BTET I i gere wferEeaar smarrar
ity & Bk G L faera wemgy faree faw, Pdes . Trarewer
- T FHFEET AT Elidet i
CE iy TR AT m'mmmm
o FTtE Ak werrer Few ardy
AT AT AT i WA

T W R W

i T A
fafd : 93 FiidF 3059 T FTAT S

(3%, AFET 07 frram Fam feaamn

| FEATE, A ATy




Ared Erew fatee

ufFEa (Consolidated) 7y wame faawor

¥ AT o= (Y FETE J0T¥) AT WA WU T

&

e afafafiare T =

TN FE HTEF AR SO R0 RS, tE% REE 510
HATEEE

HTATST ATERTAT 1% 800 00a) e, e 2
AP, AT 7 U0 (AT (AT L ST iq5% v5) % MO% 40T
AT TAT A AATAT = AT EXEREES (95,3400
AT TSI AT AT STt ¥ 000 000 4 00 O
A S WY 83Y EeE P ER NS
P, T, TR, WO AT FPIE 7 A AETa] g aay T LR L ERETE 993,590,990
=1 = 350%,550 5 %60 30
e et afvac sftrr w=mEe SETET %58, %45 GEY GE1,99%, %53
MY 7497 70 AN AUE (qE ) FH 40,337,900 TIERTART
FAwT WresTerar auEn wig) % 033 YR LR VLY
RIS AERTAT qUE (qE) T 1 4=s ot i%,%93,557
BT 741 #7100 A qig . (F ) 13,9¢,59 (93,399,493}
FHET AT WUET 95 ) (TS OEY) A, s
HATAA TfatatearE 7T T4E 1,091,448, 843 185y, ¥ T, G,
ST g EERG PR EFELRENS
RIREAI Gkl 539,373 (95,354,537
FHuraer nffafiaTe @7 T T BRY, 439,859 EYlg,ER%,0%0
s afafafarst T g

geifs, &l v T fasETe g ¥ E3g LYo @ og] e
Fogh, RIS 7 FUHAN, FAAL AT HEA T AHT SR G (e, T es) 9, o Y|

FAMATAT (i) FA = 5% 38 S
HTATST AR Y 500,000 %, T T
HIME TAT T AT ST ATRRTAT ¥53 53T H4E %0
AT Tiafafeene woE g7 TR v @ (¥96,394,899) (359,C%E,008)
Fafr wfafafrer s 7
et = (350%,550) 5,550,935}
O AAT AT qlG (AL 9,9934=%) 143,909,599
HEH S "0EE AR AR (AT 9T ER ] 5%
=T ATATH T 1330 590 80 1955 48 Vg
faferg nfafafaare AU §2 a7 w4@ (M) (93,4%3,500) (235,25%,33%)
A T T YRl 9Y g (FHET) 39,503 59% 3y 09G, B8y
FUTEAHT AT ¥ AT A9 W3 408 93y 5, '8, 700
Tgt=rAT A T AT O 0%, 300,15 83,485, %3y
Hftrrg LiCLGR I ity wm o fa, fors 7. TrerweEr
Frwre-far TR FTHET AT i ArdEe
wHE Wi wE e ferew wdr TR
THT FHAT WEAT T T A

T e el Ty

iy wew
fafe - 43 Fid® os9 AT FAT HEE

(3% FHET 07 fremae e fesramen

FT ;| FIEATEL, e AT



adbplab Jalhb ‘|81HOIb © bibe
Lslkbple] dbd biesbl) (Akok 2blPhle k)
Suls el kol baok SRl kb Bk
ulg Wis k)
AUk skl bels Lkl
Zalb lol» Lyl AR Gl
B2iguied 22in ¥ planye sk e i
s S g puepe mane y
13i2nkiel> b SDie] Dy 2ab) 2512k lkkz) flblhil kb Sl h..ﬁ
elFll LhbRERIG bk iekik] [k 1512 2lehp & B B2|2 [Pk
(L0 LYY = ERe IR e e 29k '8ks's Sorhaa ReE Y | b36‘aut's | MAA'aW'RE | 000'000T3k | OB 'ERW2EY Iplle bty ook Eo'bE
=TT S m ok oLk =T Lsitabe b dhlp Lhbs i
REEE = FEE - mas = = = = Lpnlby (b blek beih BEalB lbbteln kbl
= = = loas'ota’ an) |- = oRY SRR AR Llic pblk libslls
lo¥sonb s |- oRseakires |- los'an ke |- = = - . a0k Leldb Lglkll
ehs'owa ko = oha'onatoy = ohr'ofrtoy |- = = = he—oSos hb (klbblk hikh =6
Tes'aDe' - hak'ame'y hrn'aoe'y - 2 - &i - bbbkl ik Lk SNRA IR 1Bl Pl Bkl
LEvh KRS 20k - LER R 20k ' Eah'aan't ozeRos 't |Lae'ast's | etA'2WRE [ooo'oeeik | oR0'RLe Aun Il ieh oook ok
AaE'y £ s’y = %5k - - - - | lnlfi dJelusbes Birk btk BEQE [dibln beble
= = - - lote REbRAl |- = = Y N Ll 2hlk Leblk
ILEREoa b |- BERE0% w0kl |- (bR ECE ag bl |- - - - Wi Sn0s lElbE Lkl
(RN 2 A 8 EuR aak': e ea s 0l w oy ann 2k |= = = - Ul bt dibplabe
Rekzon'shh - Reh'ema'she = Re¥zop'she |- - - - Go=yons kb (BlEElb) hibh b
b= mon'h 5 basno'h ba= moe'h = = 5 . EEkih @il Iy 3000 AT (@l ik Pl Slikl
LT LT A TN 1 1R LE0'OLY AL ERE AL Lot 00s 9 s IR aaE e | BAR AL RE 00’000 L [iET Y L] lhlk lEhth wookBokE
il ] P e el e ey D -

lbhk |Ehis kil U (aiok Rk %b) Look Blele b

Indbb) JEkpbyh kbhis laiplped (PIISPIIOSUOD) Lkt

2zhll] B2l2 2l

5
=



L
W W
& St e
- 4

doaltee Hotel Limited
* x * x &

S0ALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

2.1.
2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON)] and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the
Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its
incorporation more than 57 wvears, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five-star
quality hotel facilities and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has invested in
subsidiary company namely Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee
Hospitality Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Scaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts
Pwt. Ltd.

SHL owns and operates a luxurious property classified under Five Star Deluxe category by the
Government of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee Kathmandu®" hotel at Tahachal,
Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is owned and
operated by the SHL. The Scaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to
Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet, an Inflight Catering
Division under a Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared by consolidating the financial statements of Soaltee
Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL) and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% subsidiary), collectively stated as
"the Group" hereinafter. The Group's principal activity is to invest in hotel industry. The Group has
invested in hotels in Kathmandu and Nepalguanj,

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors
on 29 October 2024 (13 Kartik 2081) and has recommended for approval by sharehalders in the Annuaal
General Meeting,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for t he

following material items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.

- Other long-term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the obliga-
tion

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFES) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires
management to exercise judgment in the process ol applving the Group’s accounting policies, The Group
makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are
continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, In the future, actual result may differ
from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

yoar arc.




Pt
Pyovih

]

foulice WXel Linked vosft amftie wfadsT 050 /3059

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management of each company reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and
equipment in each year. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.

b} Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and eguipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use, Value inuse is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors.
Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact
on the carrying value of assets,
c¢)] Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about [uture developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
bevond the control of the Group.,

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate, Deferred tax
assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where
the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination
of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate,
rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period ete. Factors considered may
change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the Group.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is alse the Group’s functional
CUTTECTICY.

2.2. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The
arcas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements
and their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Basis of Consolidation

Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of ancother entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it is classified as a
subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group and its subsidiaries
(“the Group®) as if they formed a single entity,

Consolidation of inancial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements, In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are
combined line by line by adding the like itemns of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carryving amount of the parent's investment in



2.2.2

2.2.3

L [}

subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated. All intra group assets and
liahilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group
are eliminated in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. SHL has opted for carve out

alternative accounting treatment issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting policies for like
transactions in consolidation of financial statement. Under the carve out alternative treatment, the
investment made in associate by SHL's fully owned subsidiary is measured at cost instead of measuring
it using equity method.

Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its assoclates are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out issued by
ICAN for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

i, Recognition

The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to itz acguisition or
issue,

ii. Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the
entity's business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine
whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVOCE) or [air value through profit or loss {‘'FVPLY).

- At amortized cost:
Financial assects at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Group has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are initially rec-
ognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recog-
nition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method
less any impairment losses.

- At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such
instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value. Attributable
transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the
above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured
at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which are recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an invest-
ment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.
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iii. Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and
rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets
{or the carryving amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is
recognized in retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.
iv. Offsetting

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.
v. Amortized cost measurement
The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between
initial amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.
vi. Fair value measurement

Fair value of a inancial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
guoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor
— breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor
- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’'s carryving amount and amount
the management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and
appropriate estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received
are provided allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss,

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in
its net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account



against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCIL.
Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount,
If an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to

decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case
of available for sale investment).
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the
impairing loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized
through OCI.
2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carryving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they
reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.
2.2.5 Foreign Currency
Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency” is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associatecd
with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component,/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arizing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIF).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value

The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost.
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2.2.8

2.2.9

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives,

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 vears

Vehicle 10 - 20 vears
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 yvears

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leasehold Development 3 years

Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software, These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives,

Investment Property

The Group holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment properiy are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
When an item of property, plant and eguipment becomes an investment property following a change in
its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrving amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line NFRS 16; Leases.

Salvage Value

Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.
Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items
of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.




Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Subseguent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss,
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive Income
that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to
Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories
Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subseguently
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition,

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposgits and other short term highly liguid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment,

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan,

2.2.13 Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial lability or financial asset. The Group's equity shares are classified as
equity instruments,

2.2.14 Employee Benefits

Emplovee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Emplovee benefits of
SHL comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Emplovee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL payvs pre-defined Provident Fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) and SHL does not have any
legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future, Contributions to Provident fund are
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. SHL accrues
8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with the Labor Law of Nepal till Falgun
2076 while S8HL has deposited Employee Gratuity in S58F from Chaitra 2076. The amount presented in
financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to emplovees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the

end of the period in which the emplovee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the

present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.
2.2.15 Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subseguent periods,

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous yvears. Current tax is calculated
reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management assumption and
best judgment.
General corporate tax rate is 25%. SHL is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as per
the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058 Sec. 11(3Chha). Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the SHL for
current fiscal vear is 21.25% (previous year rate was 21.25%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the group
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Luxury Tax where applicable,

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Luxury Tax. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is stated net of Civil
Aviation Fee,

Revenue from package sales iz disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.
Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income is recognized on accrual basis when there is reasonable basis to ascertain the amount and
there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fee, which are insignificant to
the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there is reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.
License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte, Lid, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of The Soaltee Gate Gourmet'is based on a fixed percentage
of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus



Emplovee bornus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonius Act 2030 BS.
2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is jor contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the uze of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even il that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the group has determined whether the arrangement contain lease
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Soaltee Gate Gourmet. The
lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with
NFRS5 16: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures to
third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with NFRS 16: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions
The Group applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Centingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities,

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists,

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liahilities in statement of financial position based on current / non-current
classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of current /non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:
Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cazh or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,
The Group classifies a liability as current when:
+ [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cyvcle
= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other lHabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are classified as non-current assets and habilities.
2.2.21 Segment Reporting

The Group's segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
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are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's management
of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.
2.2.22 Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will be
received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 meonths,
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
Cost
| Balance at 01.04.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition % =
| Disposal/Transfer = 5
| Balance at 31.03.2080 14,937,654 14,937,654
| Addition
| Disposal = i
Balance at 31.03.2081 14,937,654 14,937,654
| Amortization
| Balance at 01.04.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
| Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
Disposal L7 i
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,510,800 14,510,800
Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
| Disposal - -
| Balance at 31.03.2081 14,888,042 14,888,042
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2079 804,096 804,096
At 31.03.2080 426,854 426,854
At 31.03.2081 49.612 49.612
Note 3.3: Investment Property
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
| Balance at 01.04.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - 4 280,130 4,280,130
| Digposal - - :
| Balance at 31.03.2081 4,707,287 170,426,942 175,134,230
Amortization
| Balance at 01.04.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal 2 4 2
Balance at 31.03.2080 - 83,656,605 83,656,605
Charge for the year - 2,093 800 2,093,800
| Disposal i - -
Balance at 31.03.2081 - 85,750,405 85,750,405
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618
At 31.03.2080 4,707,287 82,490,207 87,197,495
At 31.03.2081 4,707,287 84,676,537 80,383,825




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax iz calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate.
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doaltee Hotel Limited
* x * x &

Deferred tax assets are

recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management
believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

Credit/(Charge) to | Credit/|Charge] to
Particulars 01.04.2080 SOPL ocl 31.03.2081
| Fixed Assets (62,270,628) (10,900,967) - (73,171,595)
| Gratuity Provision 15,009,795 (921,269) E 14,088,529
Provision for Leave 11,963,694 918,317 - 12,882,011
| Trade and Other Receivable 10,968,678 1,062,500 - 12,031,178
Total (24,328,458) (9,841,419) - (34,169,877)
Credit/(Charge) te | Credit/|Charge) to
Particulars 01.04.2079 SOPL ocI 31.03.2080
| Fisted Assets (33,303,422) (8,967,206) - (62,270,628)
| Gratuity Provision 16,203 871 (1,194,073) 15,009, 798
| Provision for Leave 10,406,635 1,557,059 - 11,963,694
| Trade and Other Receivable 9,906,178 1,062 500 10,968 678
| Total (16,786,738) (7,541,720) - (24,328,458)
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Non-Current

| At Amortized Cost

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

| At Fair Value Through OCI

280,476,188

274,687,563

| Total

280,476,188

274,687,563

I Current

| At Amortized Cost

| At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

| At Fair Value Through OCI

| Total

Investment comprises the following:

At Amortized Cost (A)

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

lerm Deposit

Total Investment at Amortized Cost

At Fair Value Through OCI [B)

Investment in Associates

| Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pet, Lid.

261,840,000

261,840,000

Sub-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities

| Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd.

18,636,188 12,847,563

| (100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each)

Sub-total 18,636,188 12,847,563
_Tntnl Investment through OCI 280,476,188 274,687,563
Proportion of voting rights
| Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pt. Lid. 24% 24%
| Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97%: 3.97%

To
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Non-Current
| Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,031,419
| Deposit for Appeal 12,289,454 9,299 783
| Deposits 6,073,912 7.065,592
| Loans and Advances to Emplovees 4,536,124 6,982,735
| Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses - 41,304
Total 29,950,909 30,440,833
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419 [7.051,419)
Total 22,899,490 23,389,414
Current
Trade Receivable
| Trade Receivable 278,565,118 266,725,614
| Less: Allowance for Impairment (49,565,8587) (44,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 228,999,231 222,159,727
Other Receivable
| Loans and Advances to Emplovees 11,679,674 13,514,850
| Loans and Advances to Other 33,742,472 28,209,222
| Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 27,793,193 54,267,965
| VAT Recoverable 1,342,801 3,089,678
| Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,251 4,036,281
| Others 2,903 840 403 843
| Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 307,080 265,7TH
Total Other Receivable 81,895,341 104,177,621
Total 310,894,572 326,337,348

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.

Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of 90

days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade receivable included in Current

receivable is provided in Note 4,10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

| o Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
| Stores and Spares 22,620,542 21,790,412
Provision, Beverage and Others 43,581,747 arv.221,699
- Uniform and Linen 39,701,656 42,147,234
| Crockery, Cutlery etc, 25,333,070 21,044,174
Total 131,237,015 122,203,519
Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Eguivalent

[ Particulars 21.03.2081 31.03.2080

| Cash in Hand 3,287,161 3,880,934
| Cheques in Hand - 700,000
Balances with Bank 100,913,003 68,007,001
| Total 104,200,164 72,596,935

=




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Authorized
| 150,000,000 Shares of Rs, 10/- cach I,SD'D,DCIG.DCID| 1, 500,000,000
| 1ssued
[ 100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,ﬂﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂlﬂ,0ﬂﬂ| 1,000,000,000
| Subscribed
{92 895 370 Shares of Rs.10/- each {Fully Paid Up) 928,953,700 884,715,060
[Total 928,953,700 884,715,060
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
[ Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Balance at the beginning of the year 88 471,506 84,257 973
| Add: Bonus Issue 4,423 864 4,213,533
| Balance at the end of year 92,895,370 88,471,506
Details of Shareholding
| Major Corporate Shareholders &9% GO,
| General Shareholders 31% 3 1%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
| Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
| Other Reserve T, 288,761 7,288,761
| Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
| Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 5.636,1588 2,847 563
| Retained Earnings 1,375,489,676 1,162,705,760
[ Total 1,442,613,052|  1,224,040,511
Note 2.11: Non-Controlling Interest
[ : Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Share Capital = £
| Retained Earnings - -
[ Total E -
Note 3.12: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Non-Current
| Secured- Hire Purchase 6,636,303 7,931,571
| Total 6,636,303 7,931,571
Current
| Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,360,289 1,308,207
| Total 1,360,289 1,308,207
Note 3.13: Employee Benefits
Particulars 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Non-Current
| Gratuity 66,208 960 70,634,343
| Less: Plan Assets {1,505,714) (1,259,866
| Net Gratuity Liability 64,793,246 69,374,477
| Accumulated Leave 60,621,227 56,299 735
| Total 125,414,473 125,674,212
I_Current
| Salary and Wages Payable 12,861,071 13,028,397
| Bonus Payable 74,734 688 68,712,943
| Total 87,595,759 81,741,340
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.14: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
| Advance Income Tax 133,068,430 110,149,978
| Income Tax Liability (138,269,745 (125,120,495
| Total (5,201,315) (14,970,517)
Note 3.15: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars | 31.03.2081 | 31.03.2080
Non-Current
| Retention and Security Deposit 29,704 246 15,159,071
| Advances Received 45,034 895 48,947,939
| Uneclaimed Dividend 17,936,251 13,539,009
Total 02,675,302 77,646,019
Current
| Sundry Creditors 261,073,103 236,584,587
Iﬂther Payable
ihdmnces Received 34,999 574 34,999,574
{ Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,230,305 1,148,430
| VAT Payable 302,857 277,224
| Service Charge 12,025,508 12,102,566
| Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 10,536,663 8,431,238
| Other Liabilities 84,741,631 68,283,274
IT-:Ith 431,243,670 388,160,926
Trade and other payahle are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.16: Revenue from Operation
| Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Room 501,426,885 551,004 425
| Food 1,670,573,962 1,496,892, 775
| Beverage 124,152,256 104,935,519
| Cigar and Cigarettes 2,052,476 1,497,714
| Laundry Income 2.222 726 1,779,057
| Business Centre 21,106 17,131

| Total 2,390,449,411 2,156,216,621
Note 3.17: Other Income

| Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

| Premises Rental Charge 51,843,657 36,397,311
| Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 901,531 1,108,581
| Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 563,632 136,390
| Miscellaneous Receipts 50,953,635 10,644 900
| Income from Service Charge - 21,403,302
| Dividend Income 2,700,000 19,271,347
Profit on Sale of Assets 179,251 4,506,502
Exchange Gain 708,385 2,348,345
' Others 3,316,998 2,132,490
| Reversal of Provision for Gratuity - 2,315,290
Unclaimed Balance Written Back 111,924 -
| Total 111,279,243 100,484,458
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.18: Consumption of Food and Beverage
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Food 372,362,310 350,648,786
| Beverage 32,081,547 25,830,695
| Cigarettes 709,619 603,925
| Total 405,153,476 380,083,406
Note 3.19: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Salary and Wages 981,051,900 250,363,092
| Allowances 91,255,848 69,270,703
| Festival Allowance 14,721,002 13,042 251
| Overtime 0,030,487 8,510,124
| Emplovees Meal 45,212,425 42,212,553
| Soaltee Staff Welfare 2,398,228 2,468,220
| Gratuity 14,978,588 13,593,805
| Leave 8,872,154 11,095,599
| Provident Fund 17,982,025 16,315,871
| Clinic Expenses 3,116,383 2,806,557
Incentive Exit Scheme - 3,975,004
| Banus 74,734,688 65,712,043
Total 563,383,728 502,368,131
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a,
Note 3.20: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
{ Linen 16,021,954 11,354,200
| Laundry Supplies 49,467,434 37,871,510
| Crockery & Cutlery 4,513,645 3,913,305
Silverware 1,627,007 529,198
Cleaning Supplies 17,803,578 14,245,204
| F & B Paper Supplies 21,476,771 17,328,664
| Guest Supplies 35,240,718 32,244,290
| Water & Water Treatment 11,331,873 10,413,839
Garden Maintenance 244 B85 1,692 064
| Pest Control 2,508,000 2,496,000
| Waste Remowval 1,491,503 1,243,300
| Power and Fuel 107,851,520 115,138,899
| Repair and Maintenance 33,281,448 36,928,650
Total 303,460,367 285,399,823
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.21: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
| Rental Charges 15,997,048 10,367,981
| Travelling 22 718 769 24 778318
{T;'anspnrt and Conveyance 29 927 122 34,364 718
| Audit Fee 635,000 645,000
Legal and Professional Fees 9,935,027 9,303,004
| Directors’ Meeting Fees 1,794,132 1,494,123
| Licence & Taxes B7. 444 500 33,879 627
| Bank Charges 10,827 365 8,794 279
;Annuul General Meeling Expenses 1,185,640 .9?0.145
| Commissions 13,250,510 16,110,637
| Insurance 10,959,771 10,071,617
| Communication Expenses 4,851,071 5,454, 834
Printing and Stationery 9,193,262 7,551,309
| Advertisement and Sales Promotion 19,250,117 16,795,825
| Marketing and Reservation Expenses 7,818,957 7,717,702
| Training and Conference 1,858,882 1,683,173
| Books and Newspaper 200,418 186,937
, Membership & Subscription 1,906,947 2,281,856
| Security Services 15,123,943 15,204,998
| Uniform Expenses 7,949,331 7,340,730
| Entertainment 5,714,191 4,536,967
| Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,061
Software Service Charges 8,251,196 6,501,297
| Investment Written Of - 3,443,328
Banquet Expenses 7,434,067 9,421,467
| Kitchenette Expenses 5,980,553 7,870,198
Corporate Social Responsibility 6,000,425 5,549,796
| Miscellaneous 26,745,145 20,079,074
| Total 338,063,989 277,399,001

Note 3.22: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.,
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number of
ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or share
split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for

all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been done as stated above,

Particulars | 2080-81 | 2079-80
Basic Earnings per Share

| Profit/ (Loss) for the vear 602,450,417 256,486,595
| Number of shares 92 895,370 a2 895,370
| Basic Earnings per Share [Rs.) 6.49 5.99
|m!ut¢d Earnings per Share

| Profit/ |Loss) for the vear 602,450,417 556,486,595
l Weighted average number of shares 92 B95 370 92 895 370
| Diluted Earnings per share (Rs,) 6.49 5.99




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.23: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement
Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3, Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Company has used its own data {accounting
value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets
or liabilities. Such factors did not exist as per management evaluation and accordingly, book value has been
considered as fair value.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2081

| Carrying Amount | Levell | Level2 |

Level 3

Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Receivable 333,486,982 333,486,982
Investment - -
| Cash and Cash Equivalent 104,200,164 104,200,164

| Total At Amortized Cost

437,687,146

437,687,146

éFinancia:I Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVOCI)

| Investment 280,476,188 280,476,188
Total Financial Assets 718,163,334 - - 718,163,334
| Financial Liabilities

| Financial Liahilities at Amortized Cost

Trade and Other Payvahle

523,919,062

523,919,062

{ Loans and Borrowings 7,996,592 7,996,502
|Tu-tal Financial Liabilities 531,915,654 - - 531,915,654
] As at 31.03.2080 | Carrying Amount | Levell | Level2 | Level 3

| Financial Assets

 Financial A at A tized Cost

;Trade and Other Receivable 349 419 682 349 419 6382
[nvestment - -
| Cash and Cash Equivalent 72,596,935 72,596,935
| Total At Amortized Cost 422,016,617 422,016,617

| Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Investment 274,687,563 274 687,563
Total Financial Assets 696,704,180 - . 696,704,180
EI a " ] I " 1 -i-! »

| Fi ial Liabiliti £ A ized Cost

Trade and Other Payvable 465,800,945 465,506,945
| Loans and Borrowings 9,239,778 9,239,778
| Total Financial Liabilities 475,046,723 - - 475,046,723

=
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Additional Information
Share Capital
The Group has single class of equity shares where shates of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of Rs.
10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity shares
therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share capital.
Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in one subsidiary where holding iz 100%. Upon consolidation
of the financial statements, total portion of financial statements is added by eliminating the portion of
other shareholders by way of non-controlling interest,
Reserves and Retained Earnings
a. Share premium
SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93, The amount collected by SHL in excess of its face
value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company Act 2063,
b. Other Reserves
SHL had created ather reserves out of capital profits on 1995, There is no movement on this reserve
since then.
¢. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its shareholders.
d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome.
e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first time

adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at deemed cost
which as allowed by NFES 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which SHL was required
to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of the staff.
Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined contribution plan
whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as gratuity to employes
with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. SHL has enrolled itself and it's employees in Social Security Fund
[S5F) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making contribution towards Emplovee Gratuity
in the fund.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Opening Liability 70,634,343 76,253,510
Payment Made (4,335,383) (3,303,876/)
Expenzes Booked 14,978 588 13,593 805
Reversal of Excess Provision - (2,315,291)
Deposited in 55F (14,978 ,588) [13,593,805)
Closing Liability 66,298,960 70,634,343

b. Leave
Leave is classified as other long term employvee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability

is as follows;

s




L
s

Soaltee Horel Limited
* a* * * b
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Opening Liability 56,299,735 48,972,399
Service Cost 2,046,925 8,229,115
Interest Cost 4 82T 594 4,022 294
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (3,715,503) (1,152,677)
Benefit Paid (4,837,824 (3,771,396)
Closing Liability [A) 60,621,227 56,299,735
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 60,621,227 56,299,735

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as follows:

_ Particulars [ 208081 207980
Discount Rate 9.00% H.50%
Rate of Compensation Inerease &l &%
Average Expected Future Service 16 14
Average Duration of Liabilities 11 10

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payvment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Effect on:
- Bervice Cost (829 497) (912,634
- Interest Cost 536,430 473,209
- Leave Liability (11,129,540) [10,883,442)

the present value of long term leave liability.

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating

Particulars 2080-81 2079-8B0
Effect on:
- Bervice Cost 1,008,124 1,109,033
- Interest Cost (536,430) (473,209)
- Leave Liability 13,347,626 13,101,212
4.5 Lease
SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future minimum
lease rental payment to be made is as follows:
Period 2080-81 2079-80
Up to one yvear 11,249,756 | 13,012,097
One to five years 3,648, 627 : 11,185,354
Total 16,898,383 24,197,451
SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing o use some part of its assets on lease. Minimum
lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:
Period 208B0-81 2079-80
Up to one year 62 221,492 : 37,607,133
Cne to five vears 303,558,343 ' 291,633,300
Above five years 150,365,219 : 172,386,540
Total 516,145,054 501,626,973
4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the yvear, SHL has provided Rs, 6.00 million (previous vear Rs. 5.55 million {1% of net profit after

tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 34 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act 2076.
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4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Group's business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management. The Group's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

i. Market Risk
In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the group through years
of operations has sustained through such risks over the vears in the past,

ii. Credit Risk

The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does
it enjoy credit facility from its creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of
company debtors' ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years has
been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular
recoverahbility position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liguidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
maonitors its liguidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The Group's current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist,

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 57 vears and have prepared and implemented various
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for the activities,
guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also follow specific operating
guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls implemented by the company
have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out Control
Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored high level marks placing it as one

among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.
v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be on
the certain level of supplies of SHL as such exchange rate luctuation will contribute certain level of
inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk of impacting the
income of the SHL. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate fluctuation has generally been
upward movement except of oceasional down turn movement as well. The Group has practiced not
to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for substantial period so as to minimize the
risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Group comprise of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.



a. BSignificant Influence

Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt, Ltd. is major shareholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous year Rs. 66,667
to SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,102,500 to SEPL as operating lease rent.
There is no outstanding balance at the vear encd.

Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

i. Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Lid. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of
SHL, Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84
million. There is no transaction or cutstanding balance of this company with the Group.

b. Other related entities

i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one representative
in the Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.

Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Receivable [in million)
This Year Last Year
44.19 50.44

Revenue (in million)
This Year Last Year
338.86 274.49

Particulars

Flight Catering Services
ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

c. Those charged with Governance

Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of each companies. As SHL is the
major shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by Board
of SHL. The compeosition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soallee Enterprises Pvt. Lid,
Mr. Ravi Bhakia Shresiha Director Soallee Enterprises Pvl, Lid,
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajva Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Lid.
Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari Dhrector Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director | Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director | Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director | Public Shareholder
Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi Director | Independent Director

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.
Board members are paid Rs. 25,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the vear amounts to Rs. 1,79 million (previous vear Rs. 1.49 million).

d. Key Management Personnel
The Groups' key management personnel include are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL
and General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu,

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 47.64 million (previous
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yvear Rs. 31.84 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of Hatel.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend

Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 17.94 million (previous year Es, 13,54 million).
4.10 Trade and Other Receivable
4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on Inflight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to three
different airlines is disputed and has not been paid by these respective airlines which amounted to Rs
7.051 million [previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-Current Trade and other receivables,

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings.
In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged an outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed by
Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and

business revival is yet to be known.
4,11 Lien on company's assets

Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers
providing the credit facilities, The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan and over draft
against a vehicle, movable and immovable properties amounting to Rs. 7.99 million (previous yvear Rs.
9.24 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result of
past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4,13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 56.34 million (previous year Rs. 26,04
million).
4.14 Litigations or legal cases

i. Income tax Matters
Appeal Revenue Tribunal
The Inland Revenue Department has filed an appeal to review the verdict of the Revenue Tribunal
in the Honorable Supreme Court for the Fiscal Year 2068-69 which had ruled in favor of the SHL.
The Honorable Supreme Court issued its final verdict in favor of the SHL during this fiscal vear,
The Supreme Court upheld the Revenue Tribunal's verdict and dismissed the appeal by the Inland
Revenue Department. The full text of the verdict of the Supreme Court is yel to be received after
publication by the Supreme Court at a later date,
SHL has filed an appeal with Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-
Assessment Income Tax Return for the Fiscal Year 2067-68, 2069-70, 2070-71, 2071-72, 2072-73,
2073-T4, 2074-75 & 2075-V6. The appeals arise due to an additional income tax demand/claim
as assessed by the Large Taxpayers Office during their administrative review. SHL's management
believes that it should not incur a significant financial obligation to the Company due to these tax
claims. If any tax claim does arise, such charges would be directly charged to SHL's accumulated
profit, in accordance with past practice.
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SHL has filed a writ petition with High Court against additional demand of Tax deducted at source
{Income Tax) by Large Tax Office relating to FY 2073/74. The Matter is sub-judiced in the High
Court.

il. Arbitration Suit

SHL has filed a Writ Petition with the Honorable High Court Patan on the issue of QOutstanding
Receivable recovery pending settlement by the then Hotel Manager, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd (Manager)
seeking the court's assistance for appointment of an arbitrator on behalf of Holiday Inns [(China) Lid,
as they did not appoint their arbitrator. The High Court has appeointed an arbitrator on behalf of
Holiday Inns (China) Ltd. However, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd has challenged the appointment in the
Supreme Court of Nepal stating that they have already appointed their arbitrator. The matter is sub-
judiced in the Supreme Court,

Casino Royalty of the Closed down period

SHL has filed writ petition with the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal against the demand of
Casino Royalty by Government of Nepal for the period in which the casine was not in operation from
Shrawan 2068 to Kartik 2069 due to the cancellation of Nepal Recreation Centre's Casino Operation

iii

permission. The Supreme Court has dismissed the writ and the SHL has settled said Casino Royalty

as per the full text of the verdict from the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal during this fiscal vear,
iv. Civil Aviation Authority for TIA Lounge contract continuation

SHL had filed writ petitions in the District Court of Nepal against the Civil Aviation Authority of

MNepal, & TIA for the continuation of the Lease Agreement as per the Contract renewal provision for

the further period of three years. The District Court has awarded stay order until final verdict of the

Court during this fiscal year,

v. Legal cases

SHL has filed a few other cases to recover dues from some debtors and other parties as a part of its
regular business operation.

4.15 Capital Commitment
Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 145.85
million (Previous year Rs. 175.33 million).
4.16 Letter of Credit
There is Rs, 6.68 million (Previous year Rs. Nil) outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
4.17 Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour law,
this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has not paid during the year out
of the opening balance from this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.

4.18 Operating Segment

Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into
three operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Room Segment: The Room Segment of a hotel includes reservations, front desk, housekeeping and
guest services,

ii. Food & Beverage Segment: The function of Food & Beverage Segment and Flight Services Division

is to provide food and beverages services to its customers.

iii. Other Segment: Other Segment includes the Corporate Division, Sales & Marketing Department,
Human Resource Department and other services centres except Room and Food & Beverage
Segment of the Hotel,
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The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:

{Amount in millions)

Food &
Room Other
Operating Segment Beverage Total
Segment Segment Segment
- Revenue 591.43 1,794.72 115.58 2,501.73
Total Revenue 591.43 1,794.72 115.58 2,501.73
Expenses
| Consumption cost 133.27 403.15 - 238,42
| Employee Benefit Expenses o7.44 292.60] 173.34 563.38
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 33.56 279,40 195,29 o8, 25
Depreciation and Amortization - - - 137.50
Finance Cost 5 z = 3.60
Total Expenses 264.27 977.15 368.64 1,751.17
Segment Result 327.16 B17.57 (253.086) 750.56
Income Tax 148.11
Profit for the period 602.45
Segment Assets® 3,155.86
Segment Liabilities** 3,155.86

* Segment wise assets has not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of segment assets.
= Begment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of segment liability,

4.19 Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group manage their capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs.
We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,

The Group's aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management., The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus
on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in order
to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return on capital
as well as the level of dividends to sharcholders, The Group's goal is to continue to be able to return
excess liguidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

MNo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

4.20 Ewents after reporting date

Ewvents after the reporting date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that cccur between the
balance sheet date and the date when the financial statement are authorized for issue. There are no
material events that have ocourred subsequent to 15 July 2024 till the date of signing of this financial

statements.

4.21 Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.

o
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